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APPENDIX H: SUDS MAINTENANCE STRATEGY 



      

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this document is to outline the proposed maintenance schedule for the 

drainage system and all SuDS features for the proposed development Maria Fidelis School. 

The maintenance schedule set out here complies with the CIRIA SuDS Manual (C753), 

which is identified as providing current best practice in the industry. The report does not 

addition to the information in this document. 

For the proposed extents of SuDS features on a plan drawing, please refer to the separate 

drainage layout plans and drainage strategy report. 

2.0 ORGANISATION RESPONSIBLE 

The client, London Borough of Camden council (or appointed management company), will 

be responsible for undertaking maintenance of the proposed drainage for the whole life of 

the site. 

3.0 CONVENTIONAL DRAINAGE SYSTEMS 

3.1 Gullies, Silt Traps, Manholes, Catch pits & Pipework  

On completion of construction, the internal surfaces of the sewers and manholes shall be 

thoroughly cleansed to remove all deleterious matter, without such matter being passed 

forward into the existing sewers.  

All trapped gullies, silt traps, manholes and catch pits are to be regularly inspected every 

three months and cleared out on a regular frequency for the first nine months. After this 

period, the frequency can be reduced to every six months. 

All drainage runs will be inspected once a year. The system is to be jetted clear if/when 

necessary. 

3.2 Flow controls (including Hydrobrakes) 

The manhole containing the flow control is to be regularly inspected once a year and any 

debris and silt are to be removed from the sump and manhole. 

Hydrobrakes / vortex flow controls should be maintained in accordance with the 

 



      

4.0 SUDS FEATURES 

4.1 Introduction 

The following SuDS measures are proposed for Maria Fidelis School:- 

 Permeable Paving 

 Below Ground Attenuation Tank  

During the first year of the operation of all types of SuDS should be inspected at least 

monthly and after significant storm events to ensure that the system is functioning as 

designed and that no damage or faults are evident. 

It is recommended that a report on the condition of the SuDS is undertaken further to an 

inspection at least once annually. 

4.2 Permeable pavements 

The pavement should be inspected regularly for clogging, litter, weeds and water ponding, 

preferably during and after heavy rainfall to check effective operation.  Permeable 

pavements need to be regularly cleaned of silt and other sediments to preserve their 

infiltration capacity. The SuDS Manual indicates that sweeping once per year is sufficient for 

most sites, however the sweeping frequency should be adjusted to suit site specific 

conditions and should also be informed by annual inspection reports. 

Care should be taken in adjusting vacuuming equipment to avoid removal of joining 

material.  Any lost material should be replaced. 

Table 1 outlines the proposed operation and maintenance regime for permeable pavements. 

This is adapted from The SuDS Manual (C753). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



      

Table 1: Operation and maintenance requirements for permeable pavements 

Maintenance 

Schedule 

Required Action Frequency 

Regular 

maintenance 

Brushing and vacuuming 

(standard cosmetic sweep over whole 

surface) 

Once a year, after autumn leaf fall or 

reduced frequency as required, based on 

site- specification observations of clogging 

- pay particular attention to areas where 

water runs onto pervious surface from 

adjacent impermeable areas as this area 

is most likely to collect the most 

sediments 

Occasional 

maintenance 

Stabilise and mow contributing and 

advancement areas 
As required 

Removal of weeds or management 

using glyphosphate applied directly 

into the weeds by an applicator rather 

than spraying 

As required once per year on less 

frequently used pavements 

Remedial 

actions 

Remediate any landscaping which 

through vegetation maintenance or 

soil slip, has been raised to within 50 

mm of the level of the paving 

As required 

Remedial work to any depressions 

rutting and cracked or broken blocks 

considered detrimental to the 

structural performance or a hazard to 

users, and replace lost jointing 

material 

As required 

Rehabilitation of surface and upper 

structure by remedial sweeping. 

Every 10 to 15 years or as required (if 

infiltration performance is reduced due to 

significant clogging) 

Monitoring 

Initial inspection Monthly  for three months after installation 

Inspect for evidence of poor operation 

and/or weed growth- if required, take 

remedial action 

Three-monthly, 48h after large storms in 

first six months 



      

Inspect silt accumulation rates and 

establish appropriate brushing 

frequencies 

Annually 

Monitor inspection chambers Annually 

 

4.3 Below ground attenuation tank 

Regular maintenance and inspection of below ground attenuation tanks are required to 

ensure the effective long term operation of attenuation tanks. The main activity is associated 

with dealing with debris and silt. 

Before connecting a newly constructed upstream drainage system to an attenuation tank, 

the new drainage system should be jetted and cleaned thoroughly. 

Table 2 provides the proposed operation and maintenance regime for the attenuation tanks. 

This is adapted from The SuDS Manual (C753). 

Table 2: Operation and maintenance requirements for below ground attenuation tank 

Maintenance 

Schedule 

Required Action Frequency 

Regular 

maintenance 

Inspect and identify any areas that are not operating 

correctly. If required, take remedial action. 

Monthly for 3 

months, then 

annually. 

Remove debris from the catchment surface (where it may 

cause risks to performance) 
Monthly 

For systems where rainfall infiltrates into the tank from 

above, check surface of filter for blockage by sediment, algae 

or other matter, remove and replace surface infiltration 

medium as necessary. 

Annually 

Remove sediment from pre-treatment structures and/or 

internal forebays. 

Annually, or as 

requested 

Remedial 

actions 
Repair/rehabilitate inlets, outlet, overflows and vents. As required 

Monitoring 

Inspect/check all inlets, outlets, vents and overflows to 

ensure that they are in good condition and operating as 

designed. 

Annually 



      

Survey inside of the tank for sediment build up and remove 

if necessary 

Every 5 years or 

as required 

 

5.0 SUDS PROGRAMME 

The proposed SuDS for the site will come on line approximately Autumn 2019. 

The contractor should ensure that during the construction phase that SuDS are not 

damaged by construction works. 

6.0 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUAL RECORDS 

6.1 Documents to be handed over 

Conisbee will provide this document to London Borough of Camden council, who will 

provide the document to the construction contractor, and London Borough of Camden will 

also include it in the Operation and Maintenance Manual. 

London Borough of Camden council will have copies of the drainage design drawings which 

-  

6.2 Maintenance Records 

London Borough of Camden council will be provided with the standard proforma in Appendix 

B of The SuDS Manual to enable them to record the outcomes of inspections. 

 

 



      

APPENDIX I: THAMES WATER PRE-DEVELOPMENT ENQUIRY RESPONSE 

 



 

 

 

Thames Water Utilities Limited  Registered Office: Clearwater Court, Vastern Road, Reading RG1 8DB 

Company number 02366661. VAT registration no GB 537-4569-15  

Mr Jagdev Sehmi 
 
CONISBEE 
1-5 Offord Street, 
London, 
N1 1DH 
 
 

21 November 2018 

Pre-planning enquiry: Capacity Confirmation  

Dear Jagdev, 

Thank you for providing information on your development. 

Site: Maria Fields Convent School, North Gower Street, Kings Cross, London - NW1 2LY 

Existing site: Senior School (450 pupils) + Sports hall (35 pupils). 
Existing foul water discharge by gravity into sewer 1168x787mm, 1168x762mm & 1448x838mm. 
Existing surface water discharge at 3.5 l/s at 1:1, 7.0 l/s for 1:10, 8.7 l/s for 1:30 & 11.3 l/s for 
1:100yr into sewer 1168x762mm, 1448x838mm & 1168x786mm. 
Proposed site: Sports hall (35 pupils) + Restaurant (70 no's) + Offices (1,550m2) + 
Classroom/Workshop (980m2). 
Proposed foul water discharge by gravity into sewer 1168x787mm. 
Proposed surface water flows at 2.3 l/s for all storm events up to and including 1:100yr into 
sewer 1168x762mm. 

Foul Water 

From the information you have provided, we can confirm that the existing combined sewer 
network does have sufficient capacity to accommodate the proposed foul water discharge from 
the proposed development. 

This confirmation for capacity is valid for 12 months or for the life of any planning 
approval that this information is used to support, to a maximum of three years. 

 for example, an increase 
in the number or density of homes. Such changes could mean there is no longer 
sufficient capacity.      

Surface Water  

Please note that discharging surface water to the public sewer network should only be 
considered after all other methods of disposal have been investigated and proven to not be 
viable. In accordance with the Building Act 2000 Clause H3.3, positive connection to a public 
sewer will only be consented when it can be demonstrated that the hierarchy of disposal 
methods have been examined and proven to be impracticable. The disposal hierarchy being: 1st 
Soakaways; 2nd Watercourses; 3rd Sewers. 



Only when it can be proven that soakage into the ground or a connection into the adjacent 
watercourse is not possible would we consider a restricted discharge into the public surface 
water sewer network.  

We would encourage techniques such as green roofs and/or permeable paving that restricts 
surface water discharge from your site. 

When redeveloping an existing site, policy 5.13 of the London Plan and Policy 3.4 of the 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (Sustainable Design And Construction) states that every 
attempt should be made to use flow attenuation and SUDS/storage to reduce the surface water 
discharge from the site as much as possible.  

If they are consulted as part of any planning application, Thames Water Planning team would 
ask to see why it is not practicable to attenuate the flows to Greenfield run-off rates i.e. 
5l/s/hectare of the total site area or if the site is less than hectare in size then the flows should be 
reduced by 95% of existing flows. Should the policy above be followed, we would envisage no 
capacity concerns with regards to surface water for this site. 

Please note that the Local Planning authority may comment on surface water discharge under 
the planning process. 

What happens next? 

the date you wish to make your new connection/s. 

 

Yours sincerely  

Zaid Kazi 

Development Engineer 
Developer Services  Sewer Adoptions Team 


